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covers the year ended March 31, 1958, records the 
decision of the Minister of Education to develop the 
Rutherford College of Technology into a college of 
advanced technology (see Nature, 179, 1277; 1957), 
and the Committee of Chief Education Officers has 
already submitted recommendations on advanced 
courses. Among the new buildings noted in this 
report are the second instalment of Carlisle Technical 
College, to be ready for occupation for the session 
1959-60; completion of the first phase of additions 
to the Workington College of Further Education ; 
full completion of the Joint Stockton/Billingham 
Technical College ; completion of the first instalment 
of the Durham Technical College and the Bishop 
Auckland Technical College ; commencement of the 
third stage of the new Rutherford College of Tech­
nology; and the coming into use of the first instal­
ment of Easington Technical College ; the first 
instalments of the County Technical College, Ashing­
ton, and the South Shields Marine and Technical 
College; and of major extensions to the Sunderland 
College of Art. After a general review of the Willis 
Jackson report on the "Supply and Training of 
Teachers for Technical Colleges", the programme 
committee recommended that the Advisory Council 
should take appropriate steps to implement the 
recommendation that industry should be more fully 
acquainted with the staffing problems of colleges ; 
that through the programme committee it should 
prepare a comprehensive programme of part-time 
courses of training for technical teachers, and that 
a proper service of organizing tutors should be 
established. The first series of short initial training 
courses for new teachers in technical colleges was 
held at Middlesbrough, Newcastle and Workington. 

The International Institute for the Conservation of 
Museum Objects 
THE International Institute for the Conservation 

of Museum Objects was founded to provide a per­
manent organization to co-ordinate and improve the 
knowledge, methods and working standards needed 
to protect and preserve precious material of all kinds. 
Dissemination of information on research into and 
development of all processes connected with con­
servation, both scientific and technical, is an essential 
part of its function. A substantial grant from the 
Gulbenkian Foundation, covering the next three 
years, has recently been received by the Institute. 
Since 1950 the Institute has expanded continuously, 
until now it has members in more than thirty 
countries and in most major museums of the world. 
It has published its journal, Studies in Conservation, 
which carries out the Institute's policy of dissemin­
ating information, since October 1952 (hitherto 
published twice yearly, but quarterly beginning 
1959), and Abstracts of the Technical Literature on 
Archaeology and the Fine Arts since 1955. Members 
are kept in touch with each other by means of the 
News Letter, which also carries items of special 
interest, and which has been published by the 
American Office of the Institute since 1952. One of 
the most important functions of the Institute is to 
be able to put members in touch with the appropriate 
experts in any particular field of conservation. This 
is a service which is constantly expanding, and 
although up to the present time it has been available 
to members only, it is hoped to be able to extend the 
service to the general public in 1959. The Institute, 
while not possessing a laboratory of its own, is in 

touch with all institutions which specialize in tech­
nical research and development relating to the care 
of artistic patrimony, and has become one of the 
internationally recognized channels for the com­
munication of their results. 

In order to increase the international character of 
the Institute, the former Management Committee 
retired in January 1958, and was replaced by a 
ten-member Council, representing approximately the 
present topographical distribution of members of the 
Institute. Its members are : President, W. G. Con­
stable; Vice-Presidents, Dr. P. B. Coremans, Dr. 
H. J. Plenderleith, F. I. G. Rawlins; Secretary­
General, N. S. Brommelle; Treasurer, S. Rees Jones; 
Ordinary Members of Council, R. J. Gettens, Dr. S. 
Paramasivan, Dr. A. van Schendel, G. L. Stout ; 
Membership Committee, Dr. Paul Coremans, Sheldon 
Keck, Dr. Arthur van Schendel, Mme. Magdeleine 
Hours, the Secretary-General (ex-officio). Information 
concerning the Institute can be obtained from the 
assistant secretary, Miss R. M. Spielman, c/o The 
National Gallery, Trafalgar Square, London, \V.C.2. 

Electric Technology, U.S.S.R. 
THE increasing importance of Russian scientific 

and technical literature is reflected in the appearance 
of journals comprising selected papers and articles 
translated from the Russian. A recent addition to 
this series is Electric Technology, U.S.S.R. (four 
volumes comprising approximately 700 pages per 
annum. Annual subscription £20 (56 dollars); single 
volumes £6 (17 dollars). London and New York: 
Pergamon Press, 1958), containing translations of 
articles from Elektrichestvo, the leading Russian 
journal dealing with heavy-current electrical engin­
eering and, incidentally, one of the oldest electrical 
journals in the world. It is proposed to publish in 
the new journal only those articles from Elektrichestvo 
having the greatest general interest and value. The 
publishers state, however, that they will be able to 
provide a translation of any article which has appeared 
in the Russian journal. The contents of the first 
issue represent papers selected from Elektrichestvo, 
Nos. 1-4, 1957, and cover a wide range of topics, 
including, for example, short-circuit transients on 
long lines, the problem of impulse tests on the turn 
insulation of a high-voltage machine, the use of 
amplidyne and transistor amplifiers in industrial 
drives, the measurement of earth resistances and the 
stabilities of measuring instruments using 'Magnico' 
and 'Alnico'. 

While it is no doubt true that the existing abstract­
ing, translating and reprint services cover the field of 
Russian scientific literature very satisfactorily and 
provide the scientist and engineer with copies of 
specific papers which he may wish to consult, there 
does appear to be a useful purpose to be served by a 
journal which selects, translates and publishes at 
intervals the most important Russian articles in a given 
field. Such a publication enables the reader not only to 
form some picture of the range of work being done 
in his field but also to read, from time to time, an im­
portant paper in full, without requiring to take 
special steps to obtain it in translation. Electric 
Technology, U.S.S.R., is a welcome addition to the 
literature of electrical engineering. 

International Glossary of Wood Anatomy 
IT is very satisfactory to find that action is being 

taken in several scientific fields to secure agreement 
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on the precise meaning of the many special terms 
that have come into use among research workers and 
others. Relatively few such terms have been deliber­
ately invented and defined on introduction into the 
literature, and even of these a large proportion tend, 
with time, to be loosely used, sometimes with a 
meaning very different from what was originally 
intended. In this way, ambiguity creeps in, causing 
confusion until action is taken to secure standard­
ization, or at least definition, and indication of 
preferred usage. Among the groups to take action of 
this kind is the International Association of Wood 
Anatomists which, realizing the need for revision of 
the glossary produced in 1933, has recently pub­
lished a new glossary of more than two hundred 
terms with definitions (Tropical Woods, No. 107; 
October 1957: International Glossary of Terms used 
in Wood Anatomy. Pp. 36. Zurich: International 
Association of \Vood Anatomists, Universitiitstrasse 
2; New Haven, Conn. : Prof. William L. Stern, 
205 Prospect Street, 1957). By a fortunate coin­
cidence, the second part of a British Commonwealth 
Forest Terminology was under compilation at the 
same time and agreement has been secured for all the 
terms included in both. Furthermore, it has been 
agreed that these English glossaries, co-ordinated so 
far as possible with the American equivalents, are to 
form the basis of multi-lingual glossaries for inter­
national usage. This is an important step in the 
right direction. 

Gairdner Foundation Awards in Arthritis and 
Heart Disease 
THE Gairdner Foundation has announced its first 

international awards in arthritis and heart disease, 
totalling 40,000 dollars. Medical scientists from 
Britain, the United States and Canada are included 
among the seven recipients. The Gairdner Founda­
tion Award of Merit of 25,000 dollars has been 
awarded jointly to Dr. Alfred Blalock and Dr. Helen 
B. Taussig (Johns Hopkins University, Baltimore) 
for their initial development of what is popularly 
known as the 'blue-baby operation' for congenital 
obstruction of the pulmonary artery. Three annual 
awards of 5,000 dollars each have been awarded to 
the following : Profs. H. M. Rose and C. Ragan 
(Columbia University, New York) for their discovery 
of an agglutinating reaction affording the first prac­
tical laboratory blood-test for the diagnosis of 
rheumatoid arthritis ; to Prof. W. D. M. Paton 
(Royal College of Surgeons of England) and Prof. 
Eleanor Zaimis (Royal Free Hospital School of 
Medicine, London) for their discovery of the meth­
onium compounds, the first drugs effective in the 
treatment of high blood pressure; to Dr. \V. G. 
Bigelow (University of Toronto) for his develop­
ment of the technique of hypothermia for heart 
surgery. 

Christmas Lectures at the Science Museum 
CHRISTMAS lectures for children aged thirteen to 

seventeen years are to be given for the first time this 
year at the Science Museum. There will be two 
subject<;: first, "From Man Power to Atomic Power" 
on December 31, repeated on January 1 and 2 ; 
second, "The Story of Flight" on January 5, repeated 
on January 6 and 7. The lectures will be illustrated 
by many demonstrations and the young audi'3nces 
will be able to see such things as a Montgolfier hot­
air balloon rising to the ceiling of the lecture theatre 
and a noisy and spectacular 'mock-up' of a gas 

turbine. The lectures will commence at 2.30 p.m. 
and admission is free and without ticket. 

Science Museum Exhibition on Controlled Nuclear 
Fusion 

A SMALL exhibition at the Science Museum, South 
Kensington, open from December 18 until the end 
of March 1959, illustrates British researeh in the 
field of controlled nuclear fusion. The centre-piece 
of the exhibition is a one-third scale model of Zeta, 
the apparatus developed at Harwell. This model 
was shown in the exhibition held at Geneva last 
September in connexion with the Second Inter­
national Conference on the Peaceful Uses of Atomic 
Energy, and simulates the flashing discharge which 
in Zeta produces fusion of atoms. Another scale 
model, which was on view for six months at the 
Brussels World Fair, shows the apparatus known as 
Sceptre III, which was made by Associated Electrical 
Industries, Ltd., and gives results similar to those 
obtained with Zeta. Examples are also shown of 
pioneer apparatus used at the beginning of this type 
of work twelve years ago. 

Announcements 
THE Agricultural University of Wageningen is 

organizing an international conference on "Enzymes 
and their Action", to be held at Wageningen during 
April 6-10. Further information can be obtained 
from Dr. H. Veldkamp, Laboratorium voor Micro­
biologie, Hesselink van Suchtelenweg 4, Wageningen, 
The Netherlands. 

AN international conference on "Co-ordination 
Chemistry", under the sponsorship of the Inter­
national Union of Pure and Applied Chemistry, will 
be held in London during April 6-11. The conference 
is being organized by the Chemical Society, and 
further information can be obtained from the 
Secretary, International Conference on Co-ordination 
Chemistry, Chemical Society, Burlington House, 
London, W.1. 

A SYMPOSIUM on "The Biology of Weeds" is being 
arranged by the British Ecological Society, to be 
held in Oxford during April 2-4. The programme 
will include papers on the ecology, systematics and 
physiology of weeds, the origin and development of 
weed floras, competition and population studies in 
weeds, and dormancy characteristics of weed species. 
Limited accommodation will be provided in Brasenose 
College. Inquiries should be addressed to Dr. J. L. 
Harper, Department of Agriculture, University of 
Oxford. 

THE Institute of Physics is arranging a conference 
on "Some Aspects of Magnetism", to be held in Shef­
field during September 22-24, 1959. The subjects to 
be covered by the conference are: (a) fundamental 
theories of ferro-, ferri- and antiferro-magnetism, 
including magnetic structure; (b) theories of tech­
nical magnetization processes, including hysteresis, 
coercivity, anisotropy and directional effects ; (c) 
domain phenomena in bulk materials and thin films ; 
(d) antiferromagnetism in metals and non-metals. 
Each session will be opened by an invited speaker, 
and other contributions should be submitted to the 
Conference Secretary, Institute of Physics, 47 Bel­
grave Square, London, S.W.l, before January 31. 
Abstracts (but not preprints) will be circulated before 
the conference, the proceedings of which will not be 
published in full. 
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